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RADIO ONE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
 CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
 

   

December 31,
2002

  

June 30,
2003

 
      (Unaudited)  

ASSETS        
CURRENT ASSETS:          

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 86,115,000  $ 84,774,000 
Trade accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $5,733,000 and $5,538,000, respectively    64,565,000   64,277,000 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    2,017,000   2,123,000 
Income taxes receivable    3,650,000   3,650,000 
Deferred income tax asset    2,965,000   2,965,000 

    
Total current assets    159,312,000   157,789,000 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net    41,622,000   42,702,000 
GOODWILL, net    79,002,000   112,041,000 
RADIO BROADCASTING LICENSES, net    1,670,311,000   1,639,451,000 
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS, net    27,313,000   23,909,000 
OTHER ASSETS    6,800,000   7,599,000 
    

Total assets   $ 1,984,360,000  $ 1,983,491,000 
    

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY          
CURRENT LIABILITIES:          

Accounts payable   $ 7,211,000  $ 7,841,000 
Accrued interest    14,103,000   14,184,000 
Accrued compensation    12,184,000   12,590,000 
Income taxes payable    1,200,000   1,072,000 
Other accrued expenses    8,122,000   6,344,000 
Fair value of derivative instruments    4,888,000   7,571,000 
Other current liabilities    401,000   560,000 
Current portion of long-term debt    52,500,000   52,500,000 

    
Total current liabilities    100,609,000   102,662,000 

LONG-TERM DEBT, net of current portion    597,501,000   571,251,000 
DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITY    42,227,000   54,822,000 
    

Total liabilities    740,337,000   728,735,000 
    
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:          

Convertible preferred stock, $.001 par value, 1,000,000 shares authorized and 310,000 shares issued and
outstanding; liquidation preference of $1,000 per share plus cumulative dividends at 6.5% per year, unpaid
dividends were $4,198,000 as of December 31, 2002 and June 30, 2003      —   —   

Common stock – Class A, $.001 par value, 30,000,000 shares authorized, 22,398,000 and 22,413,000 shares
issued and outstanding    23,000   23,000 

Common stock – Class B, $.001 par value, 150,000,000 shares authorized, 2,867,000 shares issued and
outstanding    3,000   3,000 

Common stock – Class C, $.001 par value, 150,000,000 shares authorized, 3,132,000 shares issued and
outstanding    3,000   3,000 

Common stock – Class D, $.001 par value, 150,000,000 shares authorized, 76,171,000 and 76,236,000 shares
issued and outstanding    76,000   76,000 

Accumulated other comprehensive loss    (3,006,000)   (4,656,000)
Stock subscriptions receivable    (33,344,000)   (34,206,000)
Additional paid-in capital    1,408,435,000   1,409,162,000 
Accumulated deficit    (128,167,000)   (115,649,000)

    
Total stockholders’ equity    1,244,023,000   1,254,756,000 

    
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity   $ 1,984,360,000  $ 1,983,491,000 

    
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated balance sheets.
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RADIO ONE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
 

   

Three Months Ended
June 30,

  

Six Months Ended
June 30,

   

2002
  

2003
  

2002
  

2003

   (Unaudited)   (Unaudited)
REVENUE:                 

Broadcast revenue, including barter revenue of $559,000, $920,000, $1,204,000
and $1,706,000, respectively   $ 91,035,000  $ 92,059,000  $156,972,000  $ 164,053,000

Less: agency commissions    10,870,000   11,147,000   18,496,000   19,711,000
        

Net broadcast revenue    80,165,000   80,912,000   138,476,000   144,342,000
        
OPERATING EXPENSES:            

Program and technical, exclusive of depreciation and amortization, shown
separately below    12,604,000   13,556,000   24,106,000   26,172,000

Selling, general and administrative    24,126,000   24,272,000   45,122,000   46,018,000
Corporate expenses    3,484,000   3,279,000   6,399,000   6,912,000
Depreciation and amortization    4,351,000   4,517,000   8,773,000   9,031,000

        
Total operating expenses    44,565,000   45,624,000   84,400,000   88,133,000

        
Operating income    35,600,000   35,288,000   54,076,000   56,209,000

INTEREST EXPENSE, including amortization of deferred financing costs    14,810,000   10,689,000   31,727,000   21,139,000
OTHER INCOME, net    547,000   696,000   1,065,000   1,363,000
        

Income before provision for income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting
change    21,337,000   25,295,000   23,414,000   36,433,000

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES    8,095,000   9,617,000   8,911,000   13,845,000
        

Income before cumulative effect of accounting change    13,242,000   15,678,000   14,503,000   22,588,000
CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF ACCOUNTING CHANGE, net of income taxes of

$15,038,000    —   —   (29,847,000)   —
        
NET INCOME (LOSS)   $ 13,242,000  $ 15,678,000  $ (15,344,000)  $ 22,588,000
        
NET INCOME (LOSS) APPLICABLE TO COMMON STOCKHOLDERS   $ 8,207,000  $ 10,643,000  $ (25,414,000)  $ 12,518,000
        
BASIC AND DILUTED NET INCOME (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE:                 

Net income before cumulative effect of accounting change    .08   .10   .04   .12
Cumulative effect of accounting change    —   —   (.30)   —

        
Net income (loss) per common share   $ .08  $ .10  $ (.26)  $ .12

        
WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING:                 

Basic    103,497,000   104,606,000   98,863,000   104,591,000
        

Diluted    104,353,000   105,141,000   98,863,000   104,988,000
        
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.
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RADIO ONE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
 FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, AND FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 (UNAUDITED)
 

  

Convertible
preferred

stock

 

Common
stock

Class A

 

Common
stock

Class B

  

Common
stock

Class C

  

Common
stock

Class D

 

Comprehensive
income

  

Accumulated
other

comprehensive
income

  

Stock
subscriptions

receivable

  

Additional
paid-in capital

  

Accumulated
deficit

  

Total
stockholders’

equity

 
BALANCE, as of December 31,

2001   —    23,000  3,000   3,000   66,000      (9,053,000)   (31,666,000)   1,208,652,000   (115,081,000)   1,052,947,000 
Comprehensive income:                                          

Net income   —    —    —     —     —    7,054,000   —     —     —     7,054,000   7,054,000 
Change in unrealized net

loss on derivative
and hedging
activities, net of
taxes   —    —    —     —     —    6,047,000   6,047,000   —     –   —     6,047,000 

                                       
Comprehensive income                   $ 13,101,000                     

                                       
Preferred stock

dividends   —    —    —     —     —        —     —     —     (20,140,000)   (20,140,000)
Issuance of stock   —    —    —     —     10,000      —     —     198,703,000   —     198,713,000 
Interest on stock

subscriptions
receivable   —    —    —     —     —        —     (1,678,000)   —     —     (1,678,000)

Employee exercise of
options   —    —    —     —     —        —     —     783,000   —     783,000 

Tax effect on non-
qualified option
exercises   —    —    —     —     —        —     —     372,000   —     372,000 

Repurchase of stock   —    —    —     —     —        —     —     (75,000)   —     (75,000)

                 
BALANCE, as of December 31,

2002   —    23,000  3,000   3,000   76,000      (3,006,000)   (33,344,000)   1,408,435,000   (128,167,000)   1,244,023,000 
Comprehensive income:                                          

Net income   —    —    —     —     —    22,588,000   —     —     —     22,588,000   22,588,000 
Change in unrealized net

loss on derivative
and hedging
activities, net of
taxes   —    —    —     —     —    (1,650,000)   (1,650,000)   —     –   —     (1,650,000)

                                       
Comprehensive income                   $ 20,938,000                     

                                       
Preferred stock

dividends   —    —    —     —     —        —     —     —     (10,070,000)   (10,070,000)
Interest income on stock

subscriptions
receivable   —    —    —     —     —        —     (862,000)   —     —     (862,000)

Employee exercise of
options   —    —    —     —     —        —     —     727,000   —     727,000 

                 
BALANCE, as of June 30, 2003  $ —   $ 23,000 $ 3,000  $ 3,000  $ 76,000     $ (4,656,000)  $ (34,206,000)  $ 1,409,162,000  $ (115,649,000)  $ 1,254,756,000 

                 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.
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RADIO ONE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
 

   

Six Months Ended June 30,
 

   

2002
  

2003
 

   (Unaudited)  
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:          

Net (loss) income   $ (15,344,000)  $ 22,588,000 
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash flows from operating activities:          

Depreciation and amortization    8,773,000   9,031,000 
Amortization of debt financing costs    1,089,000   849,000 
Deferred income taxes    8,655,000   13,628,000 
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax    29,847,000   — 
Non-cash compensation to officers    642,000   894,000 
Loss on retirement of assets    150,000   2,000 

Effect of change in operating assets and liabilities-          
Trade accounts receivable, net    (8,805,000)   288,000 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    (180,000)   (105,000)
Other assets    (719,000)   136,000 
Accounts payable    (608,000)   629,000 
Accrued interest    (4,174,000)   81,000 
Accrued compensation    812,000   406,000 
Income taxes payable    (122,000)   (127,000)
Other accrued expenses    (1,101,000)   (2,512,000)

    
Net cash flows from operating activities    18,915,000   45,788,000 

    
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:          

Purchase of property and equipment    (5,115,000)   (6,135,000)
Equity investments    (392,000)   (1,119,000)
Purchase of intangible assets    —   (1,260,000)
Deposits and payments for station purchases    (53,040,000)   (2,160,000)

    
Net cash flows from investing activities    (58,547,000)   (10,674,000)

    
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:          

Repayment of debt    (130,021,000)   (26,250,000)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of issuance costs    198,875,000   — 
Interest on stock subscription receivable    (867,000)   (862,000)
Payment of preferred stock dividends    (10,070,000)   (10,070,000)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options    526,000   727,000 
Payment for retirement of stock    (75,000)   — 

    
Net cash flows from financing activities    58,368,000   (36,455,000)

    
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS    18,736,000   (1,341,000)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of period    32,115,000   86,115,000 
    
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of period   $ 50,851,000  $ 84,774,000 
    
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:          

Cash paid for-          
Interest   $ 34,812,000  $ 20,412,000 

    
Income taxes   $ 380,000  $ 345,000 

    
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.
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RADIO ONE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 
1.    SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
 
Organization and Business
 
Radio One, Inc. (a Delaware corporation referred to as Radio One) and subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the Company) were organized to acquire, operate
and maintain radio broadcasting stations. The Company owns and/or operates radio stations in 22 markets throughout the United States. The Company also
provides programming services to XM Satellite Radio Inc.
 
The Company has made and may continue to make significant acquisitions of radio stations, which may require it to incur additional debt. The Company’s
operating results are significantly affected by its share of the audience in markets where it owns and/or operates stations.
 
Basis of Presentation
 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Radio One, Inc. and its subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
 
Interim Financial Statements
 
The interim consolidated financial statements included herein for Radio One and subsidiaries have been prepared by the Company, without audit, pursuant to the
rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission. In management’s opinion, the interim financial data presented herein include all adjustments
(which include only normal recurring adjustments) necessary for a fair presentation. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in the
financial statements prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States have been condensed or omitted pursuant to such
rules and regulations.
 
Results for interim periods are not necessarily indicative of results to be expected for the full year. It is suggested that these consolidated financial statements be
read in conjunction with the Company’s December 31, 2002 consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in the Company’s annual report on Form
10-K.
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2.    RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS:
 
In June 2001, FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 142 (SFAS No. 142), “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” This pronouncement
requires a non-amortization approach to account for purchased goodwill and certain other intangible assets. Under a non-amortization approach, goodwill and
certain intangibles will not be amortized into results of operations but, instead, would be reviewed for impairment and written down and charged to results of
operations only in the periods in which the recorded value of goodwill and certain intangibles is more than their fair value. Upon adopting the transitional rules of
SFAS No. 142, the Company recorded an impairment charge of approximately $23.2 million, net of an income tax benefit of $14.5 million in the first quarter of
2002, as the carrying value of certain of the Company’s FCC licenses exceeded the appraised fair value. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, the Company
reflected this charge as a cumulative effect of an accounting change, effective January 1, 2002, in its statement of operations.
 
The Company adopted the final provision of SFAS No. 142 in the fourth quarter of 2002 by reviewing the fair value of its reporting units and comparing that fair
value to the net book value of the reporting unit. To the extent a reporting unit’s carrying amount exceeded its fair value, an indication would exist that the
reporting unit’s goodwill was impaired, and the Company would then be required to perform the second step of the transitional impairment test. In the second
step, the Company compared the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill, determined by allocating the reporting unit’s fair value to all of its assets and
liabilities in a manner similar to a purchase price allocation in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 141 (SFAS No. 141), “Business
Combinations”, to its carrying amount, both of which would be measured as of the date of adoption. Based on this analysis, the Company determined that it had
an impairment of goodwill (as defined in SFAS No. 142) in its Augusta, Georgia market. The Company calculated the amount of the impairment and recorded an
impairment charge of approximately $6.6 million, net of an income tax benefit of $496,000 during the fourth quarter of 2002. As the provisions of SFAS No. 142
related to the impairment of goodwill and other indefinite life intangible assets are effective as of January 1, 2002, the financial information for the six months
ended June 30, 2002, which preceded the period in which the transitional goodwill impairment charge was measured, has been restated to reflect the accounting
change in that period.
 
In January 2003, FASB issued Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 46 (FIN 46), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an
Interpretation of ARB No. 51.” This interpretation of ARB No. 51, “Consolidated Financial Statements, “ requires certain variable interest entities to be
consolidated by the primary beneficiary of the entity if the equity investors in the entity do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest or do not
have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support from other parties. FIN 46 is effective
immediately for all new variable interest entities created or acquired after January 31, 2003. For variable interest entities created or acquired prior to February 1,
2003, the provisions of FIN 46 must be applied for the first interim or annual period beginning after June 15, 2003. The adoption of FIN 46 did not have a
material impact on the Company’s results of operations or financial position for the period ended June 30, 2003.
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3.    STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION:
 
The Company accounts for its stock-based compensation plans as permitted by Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 123 (SFAS No. 123),
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” which allows the Company to follow Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 (APB No. 25), “Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees” and recognize no compensation cost for options granted to employees at fair market value. The Company has computed, for pro
forma disclosure purposes, the value of all compensatory options granted during 2002 and 2003, using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Options were
assumed to be exercised upon vesting for the purpose of this valuation. Adjustments were also made for options assumed forfeited prior to vesting. Had
compensation costs for compensatory options been determined consistent with SFAS No. 123, the Company’s pro forma net (loss) income and earnings (loss) per
share information reflected on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations would have been adjusted to the following “as adjusted” amounts:
 

   

For the Period Ended
June 30,

 

   

2002
  

2003
 

Net (loss) income:          
As reported   $ (15,344,000)  $ 22,588,000 

Stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair value based method for all awards    (8,384,000)   (8,768,000)
    

As adjusted    (23,728,000)   13,820,000 
Basic earnings and diluted net (loss) income per share, applicable to common stockholders:          

As reported   $ (.26)  $ .12 
As adjusted    (.34)   .04 

 
4.    SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:
 
WRNB-FM Dayton Acquisition
 In July 2003, the Company purchased the outstanding stock of Hawes-Saunders Broadcast Properties, Inc., owner and operator of WRNB-FM (formerly WROU-
FM) licensed to West Carrollton, Ohio, for approximately $9.5 million in cash. WRNB-FM had been a primary competitor of one of the Company’s other stations
in the Dayton market. The Company began operating the station under a local marketing agreement in March 2003. This acquisition increased the number of
stations that the Company owns in the Dayton market to five.
 
TV One Joint Venture
 
In July 2003, the Company entered into a joint venture agreement with Comcast Corporation to launch TV One, LLC, a cable television network featuring
entertainment, news, opinion and sports-related programming targeted primarily towards African-American viewers. The Company expects to make a cash
investment of approximately $74.0 million over four years, and to provide advertising and management services to the network. In August 2003, the Company
made its first capital contribution of approximately $18.5 million to TV One, LLC. The Company will be accounting for this investment under the equity method
of accounting.
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CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 
The Company conducts a portion of its business through its subsidiaries. All of the Company’s subsidiaries (Subsidiary Guarantors) have fully and
unconditionally guaranteed the Company’s 8 7/8% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2011.
 
Set forth below are consolidating financial statements for the Company and the Subsidiary Guarantors as of June 30, 2002 and 2003, and for the three month and
six month periods then ended. The equity method of accounting has been used by the Company to report its investments in subsidiaries. Separate financial
statements for the Subsidiary Guarantors are not presented based on management’s determination that they do not provide additional information that is material
to investors.
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RADIO ONE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
 

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2002
 

   

Combined
Guarantor

Subsidiaries
  

Radio One, Inc.
  

Eliminations
  

Consolidated

   (Unaudited)   (Unaudited)   (Unaudited)    
ASSETS                 

CURRENT ASSETS:                 
Cash and cash equivalents   $ 423,000  $ 85,692,000  $ —    $ 86,115,000
Trade accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts    30,281,000   34,284,000   —     64,565,000
Due from Combined Guarantor Subsidiaries    —     1,237,854,000   (1,237,854,000)   —  
Prepaid expenses and other    894,000   1,123,000   —     2,017,000
Income tax receivable    —     3,650,000   —     3,650,000
Deferred income tax asset    2,282,000   683,000   —     2,965,000

        
Total current assets    33,880,000   1,363,286,000   (1,237,854,000)   159,312,000

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net    26,196,000   15,426,000   —     41,622,000
INTANGIBLE ASSETS, net    1,755,353,000   21,273,000   —     1,776,626,000
INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES    —     545,823,000   (545,823,000)   —  
OTHER ASSETS    1,044,000   5,756,000   —     6,800,000
        

Total assets   $ 1,816,473,000  $ 1,951,564,000  $ (1,783,677,000)  $ 1,984,360,000
        
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidating balance sheet.
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RADIO ONE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
 

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2002
 

   

Combined
Guarantor

Subsidiaries
  

Radio One, Inc.
  

Eliminations
  

Consolidated
 

   (Unaudited)   (Unaudited)   (Unaudited)     
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY                  

CURRENT LIABILITIES:                  
Accounts payable   $ 1,238,000  $ 5,973,000  $ —    $ 7,211,000 
Accrued expenses    7,620,000   27,989,000   —     35,609,000 
Fair value of derivative investments    —     4,888,000   —     4,888,000 
Other current liabilities    203,000   198,000   —     401,000 
Due to the Company    1,237,854,000   —     (1,237,854,000)   —   
Current portion of long-term debt    —     52,500,000   —     52,500,000 

       
Total current liabilities    1,246,915,000   91,548,000   (1,237,854,000)   100,609,000 

LONG-TERM DEBT AND DEFERRED INTEREST    —     597,501,000   —     597,501,000 
DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITY    23,735,000   18,492,000   —     42,227,000 
       

Total liabilities    1,270,650,000   707,541,000   (1,237,854,000)   740,337,000 
       
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:                  

Common stock    —     105,000   —     105,000 
Accumulated comprehensive loss    —     (3,006,000)   —     (3,006,000)
Stock subscriptions receivable    —     (33,344,000)   —     (33,344,000)
Additional paid-in capital    —     1,408,435,000   —     1,408,435,000 
Accumulated deficit    545,823,000   (128,167,000)   (545,823,000)   (128,167,000)

       
Total stockholders’ equity    545,823,000   1,244,023,000   (545,823,000)   1,244,023,000 

       
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity   $ 1,816,473,000  $ 1,951,564,000  $ (1,783,677,000)  $ 1,984,360,000 

       
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidating balance sheet.
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RADIO ONE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
 

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2003
(Unaudited)

 

   

Combined
Guarantor

Subsidiaries
  

Radio One, Inc.
  

Eliminations
  

Consolidated

ASSETS                 
CURRENT ASSETS:                 

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 564,000  $ 84,210,000  $ —    $ 84,774,000
Trade accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts    30,766,000   33,511,000   —     64,277,000
Due from Combined Guarantor Subsidiaries    —     1,213,420,000   (1,213,420,000)   —  
Prepaid expenses and other    691,000   1,432,000   —     2,123,000
Income tax receivable    —     3,650,000   —     3,650,000
Deferred tax asset    2,282,000   683,000   —     2,965,000

        
Total current assets    34,303,000   1,336,906,000   (1,213,420,000)   157,789,000

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net    27,603,000   15,099,000   —     42,702,000
INTANGIBLE ASSETS, net    1,755,332,000   20,069,000   —     1,775,401,000
INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES    —     571,837,000   (571,837,000)   —  
OTHER ASSETS    1,043,000   6,556,000   —     7,599,000
        

Total assets   $ 1,818,281,000  $ 1,950,467,000  $ (1,785,257,000)  $ 1,983,491,000
        
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidating balance sheet.
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RADIO ONE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
 

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2003
(Unaudited)

 

   

Combined
Guarantor

Subsidiaries
  

Radio One, Inc.
  

Eliminations
  

Consolidated
 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY                  
CURRENT LIABILITIES:                  

Accounts payable   $ 1,322,000  $ 6,519,000  $ —    $ 7,841,000 
Accrued expenses    7,717,000   26,473,000   —     34,190,000 
Fair value of derivative instruments    —     7,571,000   —     7,571,000 
Other current liabilities    250,000   310,000   —     560,000 
Due to the Company    1,213,420,000   —     (1,213,420,000)   —   
Current portion of long-term debt    —     52,500,000   —     52,500,000 

       
Total current liabilities    1,222,709,000   93,373,000   (1,213,420,000)   102,662,000 

LONG-TERM DEBT, net of current portion    —     571,251,000   —     571,251,000 
DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITY    23,735,000   31,087,000   —     54,822,000 
       

Total liabilities    1,246,444,000   695,711,000   (1,213,420,000)   728,735,000 
       
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:                  

Common stock    —     105,000   —     105,000 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss    —     (4,656,000)   —     (4,656,000)
Stock subscriptions receivable    —     (34,206,000)   —     (34,206,000)
Additional paid-in capital    —     1,409,162,000   —     1,409,162,000 
Accumulated deficit    571,837,000   (115,649,000)   (571,837,000)   (115,649,000)

       
Total stockholders’ equity    571,837,000   1,254,756,000   (571,837,000)   1,254,756,000 

       
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity   $ 1,818,281,000  $ 1,950,467,000  $ (1,785,257,000)  $ 1,983,491,000 

       
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidating balance sheet.
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RADIO ONE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
 

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2002
(Unaudited)

 

   

Combined
Guarantor

Subsidiaries
  

Radio One,
Inc.

  

Eliminations
  

Consolidated

REVENUE:                 
Broadcast revenue, including barter revenue   $ 40,737,000  $ 50,298,000  $ —    $ 91,035,000
Less: agency commissions    4,748,000   6,122,000   —     10,870,000

       
  Net broadcast revenue    35,989,000   44,176,000   —     80,165,000

       
OPERATING EXPENSES:                 

Program and technical    5,487,000   7,117,000   —     12,604,000
Selling, general and administrative    12,532,000   11,594,000   —     24,126,000
Corporate expenses    —     3,484,000   —     3,484,000
Depreciation and amortization    2,734,000   1,617,000   —     4,351,000

       
Total operating expenses    20,753,000   23,812,000   —     44,565,000

       
Operating income    15,236,000   20,364,000       35,600,000

INTEREST EXPENSE, including amortization of deferred financing costs    465,000   14,345,000   —     14,810,000
OTHER INCOME, net    (118,000)   665,000   —     547,000
       

Income before provision for income taxes    14,653,000   6,684,000   —     21,337,000
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES    —     8,095,000   —     8,095,000
EQUITY IN INCOME OF SUBSIDIARIES    —     14,653,000   (14,653,000)   —  
       

NET INCOME   $ 14,653,000  $ 13,242,000  $ (14,653,000)  $ 13,242,000
       
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidating statement.
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RADIO ONE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
 

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003
(Unaudited)

 

   

Combined
Guarantor

Subsidiaries
  

Radio One,
Inc.

  

Eliminations
  

Consolidated

REVENUE:                 
Broadcast revenue, including barter revenue   $ 46,112,000  $ 45,947,000  $ —    $ 92,059,000
Less: Agency commissions    5,435,000   5,712,000   —     11,147,000

        
Net broadcast revenue    40,677,000   40,235,000   —     80,912,000

        
OPERATING EXPENSES:                 

Program and technical, exclusive of depreciation and amortization shown below    6,949,000   6,607,000   —     13,556,000
Selling, general and administrative    13,947,000   10,325,000   —     24,272,000
Corporate expenses    —     3,279,000   —     3,279,000
Depreciation and amortization    3,035,000   1,482,000   —     4,517,000

        
Total operating expenses    23,931,000   21,693,000   —     45,624,000

        
Operating income    16,746,000   18,542,000   —     35,288,000

INTEREST EXPENSE, including amortization of deferred financing costs    198,000   10,491,000   —     10,689,000
OTHER INCOME, net    2,000   694,000   —     696,000
        

Income before provision for income taxes    16,550,000   8,745,000   —     25,295,000
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES    —     9,617,000   —     9,617,000
EQUITY IN INCOME OF SUBSIDIARIES    —     16,550,000   (16,550,000)   —  
        

Net income   $ 16,550,000  $ 15,678,000  $ (16,550,000)  $ 15,678,000
        
NET INCOME APPLICABLE TO COMMON STOCKHOLDERS   $ 16,550,000  $ 10,643,000      $ 10,643,000
           
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidating statement.
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RADIO ONE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
 

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2002
(Unaudited)

 

   

Combined
Guarantor

Subsidiaries
  

Radio One, Inc.
  

Eliminations
  

Consolidated
 

REVENUE:                  
Broadcast revenue, including barter revenue   $ 70,130,000  $ 86,842,000  $ —    $ 156,972,000 
Less: Agency commissions    8,029,000   10,467,000   —     18,496,000 

       
Net broadcast revenue    62,101,000   76,375,000   —     138,476,000 

       
OPERATING EXPENSES:                  

Program and technical    10,591,000   13,515,000   —     24,106,000 
Selling, general and administrative    23,197,000   21,925,000   —     45,122,000 
Corporate expenses    —     6,399,000   —     6,399,000 
Depreciation and amortization    4,152,000   4,621,000   —     8,773,000 

       
Total operating expenses    37,940,000   46,460,000   —     84,400,000 

       
Operating income    24,161,000   29,915,000   —     54,076,000 

INTEREST EXPENSE, including amortization of deferred financing costs    1,581,000   30,146,000   —     31,727,000 
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE), net    (115,000)   1,180,000   —     1,065,000 
       

Income before provision for income taxes and cumulative effect
of accounting change    22,465,000   949,000   —     23,414,000 

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES    —     8,911,000   —     8,911,000 
       

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting change    22,465,000   (7,962,000)   —     14,503,000 
CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF ACCOUNTING CHANGE, net of tax    (29,847,000)   —     —     (29,847,000)
EQUITY IN LOSSES OF SUBSIDIARIES    —     (7,382,000)   7,382,000   —   
       

Net loss   $ (7,382,000)  $ (15,344,000)  $ 7,382,000  $ (15,344,000)
       
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidating statement.
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RADIO ONE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
 

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003
(Unaudited)

 

   

Combined
Guarantor

Subsidiaries
  

Radio One, Inc.
  

Eliminations
  

Consolidated

REVENUE:                 
Broadcast revenue, including barter revenue   $ 81,819,000  $ 82,234,000  $ —    $ 164,053,000
Less:    Agency commissions    9,577,000   10,134,000   —     19,711,000

        
Net broadcast revenue    72,242,000   72,100,000   —     144,342,000

        
OPERATING EXPENSES:                 

Program and technical    13,333,000   12,839,000   —     26,172,000
Selling, general and administrative    26,518,000   19,500,000   —     46,018,000
Corporate expenses    —     6,912,000   —     6,912,000
Depreciation and amortization    6,075,000   2,956,000   —     9,031,000

        
Total operating expenses    45,926,000   42,207,000   —     88,133,000

        
Operating income    26,316,000   29,893,000   —     56,209,000

INTEREST EXPENSE, including amortization of deferred financing costs    307,000   20,832,000   —     21,139,000
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE), net    3,000   1,360,000   —     1,363,000
        

Income before provision for income taxes and cumulative
effect of accounting change    26,012,000   10,421,000   —     36,433,000

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES    —     13,845,000   —     13,845,000
EQUITY IN INCOME OF SUBSIDIARIES    —     26,012,000   (26,012,000)   —  
        

Net income   $ 26,012,000  $ 22,588,000  $ (26,012,000)  $ 22,588,000
        
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidating statement.
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RADIO ONE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
 

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2002
(Unaudited)

 

   

Combined
Guarantor

Subsidiaries
  

Radio One, Inc.
  

Eliminations
  

Consolidated
 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:                  
Net loss   $ (7,382,000)  $ (15,344,000)  $ 7,382,000  $ (15,344,000)
Adjustments to reconcile loss to net cash from operating activities:                  

Depreciation and amortization    4,152,000   4,621,000   —     8,773,000 
Amortization of debt financing costs    —     1,089,000   —     1,089,000 
Deferred income taxes and reduction in valuation reserve on

deferred income taxes    12,967,000   (4,312,000)   —     8,655,000 
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax    29,847,000   —     —     29,847,000 
Non-cash compensation to officers    —     642,000   —     642,000 
Loss on retirement of assets    —     150,000   —     150,000 
Effect of change in operating assets and liabilities-                  

Trade accounts receivable, net    5,668,000   (14,473,000)   —     (8,805,000)
Due to Corporate/from Subsidiaries    16,218,000   (16,218,000)   —     —   
Prepaid expenses and other    179,000   (359,000)   —     (180,000)
Other assets    2,699,000   (3,418,000)   —     (719,000)
Accounts payable    (260,000)   (348,000)   —     (608,000)
Accrued expenses and other    414,000   (4,999,000)   —     (4,585,000)

       
Net cash flows from operating activities    64,502,000   (52,969,000)   7,382,000   18,915,000 

       
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidating statement.
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RADIO ONE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
 

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2002
(Unaudited)

 

   

Combined
Guarantor

Subsidiaries
  

Radio One, Inc.
  

Eliminations
  

Consolidated
 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:                  
Purchase of property and equipment   $ (2,825,000)  $ (2,290,000)  $ —    $ (5,115,000)
Investment in Subsidiaries    —     7,382,000   (7,382,000)   —   
Equity investments    —     (392,000)   —     (392,000)
Deposits and payments for station purchases    (53,040,000)   —     —     (53,040,000)

      
Net cash flows from investing activities    (55,865,000)   4,700,000   (7,382,000)   (58,547,000)

      
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:                  

Repayment of debt    —     (130,021,000)   —     (130,021,000)
Proceeds from issuance of debt    —     198,875,000   —     198,875,000 
Stock subscriptions receivable    —     (867,000)   —     (867,000)
Payment of preferred stock dividends    —     (10,070,000)   —     (10,070,000)
Payment for retirement of stock    —     (75,000)   —     (75,000)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options    —     526,000   —     526,000 

      
Net cash flows from financing activities    —     58,368,000   —     58,368,000 

      
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS    8,637,000   10,099,000   —     18,736,000 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of period    (447,000)   32,562,000   —     32,115,000 
      
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of period   $ 8,190,000  $ 42,661,000  $ —    $ 50,851,000 
      
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidating statement.
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RADIO ONE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
 

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003
(Unaudited)

 

   

Combined
Guarantor

Subsidiaries
  

Radio One, Inc.
  

Eliminations
  

Consolidated
 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:                  
Net income   $ 26,012,000  $ 22,588,000  $ (26,012,000)  $ 22,588,000 
Adjustments to reconcile loss to net cash from operating activities:                  

Depreciation and amortization    6,075,000   2,956,000   —     9,031,000 
Amortization of debt financing costs    —     849,000   —     849,000 
Deferred income taxes    —     13,628,000   —     13,628,000 
Non-cash compensation to officers    —     894,000   —     894,000 
Loss on retirement of assets    2,000   —     —     2,000 
Effect of change in operating assets and liabilities-                  

Trade accounts receivable, net    (485,000)   773,000   —     288,000 
Due to Corporate/from Subsidiaries    (24,434,000)   24,434,000   —     —   
Prepaid expenses and other    206,000   (311,000)   —     (105,000)
Other assets    (657,000)   793,000   —     136,000 
Accounts payable    84,000   545,000   —     629,000 
Accrued expenses and other    144,000   (2,296,000)   —     (2,152,000)

      
Net cash flows from operating activities    6,947,000   64,853,000   (26,012,000)   45,788,000 

      
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidating statement.
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RADIO ONE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
 

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003
(Unaudited)

 

   

Combined
Guarantor

Subsidiaries
  

Radio One, Inc.
  

Eliminations
  

Consolidated
 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:                  
Purchase of property and equipment   $ (3,877,000)  $ (2,258,000)  $ —    $ (6,135,000)
Equity investments    —     (1,119,000)   —     (1,119,000)
Purchase of intangible assets    (1,260,000)   —     —     (1,260,000)
Investment in subsidiary    —     (26,012,000)   26,012,000   —   
Deposits and payments for station purchases    (1,669,000)   (491,000)   —     (2,160,000)

       
Net cash flows from investing activities    (6,806,000)   (29,880,000)   26,012,000   (10,674,000)

       
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:                  

Repayment of debt    —     (26,250,000)   —     (26,250,000)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options    —     727,000   —     727,000 
Interest on stock subscription receivable    —     (862,000)   —     (862,000)
Payment of preferred stock dividends        (10,070,000)       (10,070,000)

       
Net cash flows from financing activities    —     (36,455,000)   —     (36,455,000)

       
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS    141,000   (1,482,000)   —     (1,341,000)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of period    423,000   85,692,000   —     86,115,000 
       
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of period   $ 564,000  $ 84,210,000  $ —    $ 84,774,000 
       
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidating statement.
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Item 2.     Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
 

The following information should be read in conjunction with the unaudited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in this quarterly
report and the audited financial statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis contained in Radio One’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2002. Unless otherwise noted, the terms “Radio One,” “we,” and “us” refer to Radio One, Inc. and its subsidiaries.
 
General
 

Our net broadcast revenue is derived primarily from local and national advertisers and, to a much lesser extent, tower rental income, ticket and other
revenue related to special events sponsored throughout the year. Our net broadcast revenue is affected primarily by the advertising rates our radio stations are able
to charge as well as the overall demand for radio advertising time in a market.
 
Advertising rates are based primarily on:
 
 •  a radio station’s audience share in the demographic groups targeted by advertisers, as measured principally by quarterly reports issued by Arbitron;
 
 •  the number of radio stations in the market competing for the same demographic groups; and
 
 •  the supply of and demand for radio advertising time.
 

Our significant broadcast expenses are (i) employee salaries and commissions, (ii) programming expenses, (iii) advertising and promotion expenses, (iv)
rental of premises for studios, (v) rental of transmission tower space and (vi) music license royalty fees. We strive to control these expenses by centralizing certain
functions such as finance, accounting, legal, human resources and management information systems and the overall programming management function. We also
use our multiple stations, market presence and purchasing power to negotiate favorable rates with certain vendors and national representative selling agencies.
 

We generally incur advertising and promotional expenses to increase our audiences. However, because Arbitron ratings are reported on a quarterly basis,
any changed ratings and the corresponding effect on advertising revenues tends to lag behind the incurrence of advertising and promotional expenditures.
 

The performance of a radio broadcasting company is customarily measured by its ability to generate EBITDA, which is calculated as net income plus (1)
depreciation, amortization, non-cash compensation, interest expense, income tax provision and cumulative effect of accounting change and less (2) other income.
EBITDA is not a measure of performance or liquidity calculated in accordance with GAAP; however, we believe that this measure is useful to an investor in
evaluating us because this measure is widely used in the broadcast industry as a measure of a radio broadcasting company’s performance. Nevertheless, EBITDA
should not be considered in isolation from nor as a substitute for operating income, net income, cash flow, or other consolidated income or cash flow statement
data computed in accordance with GAAP, nor as a measure of our profitability or liquidity. Despite its limitation, EBITDA is widely used in the broadcasting
industry to measure a company’s operating performance without regard to items such as depreciation and amortization, which can vary depending upon
accounting methods and the book value of assets, particularly in the case of acquisitions. By eliminating such effects, EBITDA provides a meaningful measure of
overall company performance after taking into account corporate operating expenses related to the employment of the senior management team and other
overhead costs associated with running a large, publicly-traded broadcasting company.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
 

Comparison of period ended June 30, 2002 to the period ended June 30, 2003
(all periods are unaudited – all numbers in 000s except per share data).

 

   

Three months
ended

June 30,
2002

  

Three months
ended

June 30,
2003

  

Six months
ended

June 30,
2002

  

Six months
ended

June 30,
2003

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA:                 
REVENUE:                 

Broadcast revenue   $ 91,035  $ 92,059  $ 156,972  $ 164,053
Less: Agency commissions    10,870   11,147   18,496   19,711

        
Net broadcast revenue    80,165   80,912   138,476   144,342

        
OPERATING EXPENSES:                 

Programming and technical    12,604   13,556   24,106   26,172
Selling, G&A    24,126   24,272   45,122   46,018
Corporate expenses    3,142   2,853   5,757   6,018
Non-cash compensation    342   426   642   894
Depreciation & amortization    4,351   4,517   8,773   9,031

        
Total operating expenses    44,565   45,624   84,400   88,133

        
Operating income    35,600   35,288   54,076   56,209

INTEREST EXPENSE    14,810   10,689   31,727   21,139
OTHER INCOME, net    547   696   1,065   1,363
        
Income before provision for income taxes and cumulative effect of

accounting change    21,337   25,295   23,414   36,433
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES    8,095   9,617   8,911   13,845
        
INCOME BEFORE CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF ACCOUNTING

CHANGE, net of taxes    13,242   15,678   14,503   22,588
CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF ACCOUNTING CHANGE, net of taxes    —     —     (29,847)   —  
        

Net income (loss)   $ 13,242  $ 15,678  $ (15,344)  $ 22,588
        

Net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders   $ 8,207  $ 10,643  $ (25,414)  $ 12,518
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Three months
ended

June 30,
2002

  

Three months
ended

June 30,
2003

  

Six months
ended

June 30,
2002

  

Six months
ended

June 30,
2003

 
BASIC AND DILUTED PER SHARE DATA:                  

Net income per share before cumulative effect of accounting
change   $ 0.13  $ 0.15  $ 0.14  $ 0.22 

Cumulative effect of accounting change per share    —     —     (0.30)   —   
Preferred dividends per share    (0.05)   (0.05)   (0.10)   (0.10)

      
Net income (loss) per common share    0.08   0.10   (0.26)   0.12 

OTHER DATA:                  
EBITDA calculation (a):                  

Net income   $ 13,242  $ 15,678  $ (15,344)  $ 22,588 
Plus: Depreciation and amortization    4,351   4,517   8,773   9,031 
Plus: Non-cash compensation    342   426   642   894 
Plus: Interest expense    14,810   10,689   31,727   21,139 
Plus: Income tax provision    8,095   9,617   8,911   13,845 
Plus: Cumulative effect of accounting change    —     —     29,847   —   
Less: Other income    (547)   (696)   (1,065)   (1,363)

      
EBITDA   $ 40,293  $ 40,231  $ 63,491  $ 66,134 

Capital expenditures    3,131   2,941   5,115   6,135 
Weighted average shares outstanding
– basic (b)    103,497   104,606   98,863   104,591 
Weighted average shares outstanding
– diluted (b)    104,353   105,141   98,863   104,988 
 

Net broadcast revenue increased to approximately $80.9 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2003 from approximately $80.2 million for the quarter
ended June 30, 2002 or 1%. Net broadcast revenue increased to approximately $144.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2003 from approximately $138.5
million for the six months ended June 30, 2002 or 4%. These increases were the result of net broadcast revenue growth in several of Radio One’s markets,
including Atlanta, Cleveland, Dallas and Los Angeles, partially offset by revenue declines in several other markets, including Baltimore, Houston, Philadelphia
and Richmond.
 

Operating expenses increased to approximately $45.6 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2003 from approximately $44.6 million for the quarter ended
June 30, 2003 or 2%. Operating expenses increased to approximately $88.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2003 from approximately $84.4 million for
the six months ended June 30, 2002 or 4%. Operating expenses excluding depreciation, amortization and non-cash compensation increased to approximately
$40.7 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2003 from approximately $39.9 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2002 or 2%. Operating expenses excluding
depreciation,
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amortization and non-cash compensation increased to approximately $78.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2003 from approximately $75.0 million for
the six months ended June 30, 2002 or 4%. These increases in expenses were related primarily to (1) increased variable expenses associated with increased
revenue and (2) higher programming expenses in certain markets with new radio station formats and/or programming, such as with two relatively young stations
in Atlanta and the syndication of the Steve Harvey Morning Show to one of Radio One’s Dallas stations.
 

Operating income decreased to approximately $35.3 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2003 from approximately $35.6 million for the quarter ended
June 30, 2002 or 1%. This decrease in operating income was primarily attributable to higher revenue more than offset by higher operating expenses as described
above. Operating income increased to approximately $56.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2003 from approximately $54.1 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2002 or 4%. This increase in operating income was primarily attributable to higher revenue partially offset by higher operating expenses.
 

Interest expense decreased to approximately $10.7 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2003 from approximately $14.8 million for the quarter ended June
30, 2002 or 28%. Interest expense decreased to approximately $21.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2003 from approximately $31.7 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2002 or 33%. These decreases relate primarily to a reduction of outstanding bank debt (starting in the middle of the second quarter of
2002) with the proceeds received from the Company’s April 2002 equity offering and from principal payments made, beginning at the end of the first quarter of
2003, as well as lower interest rates on that bank debt as a result of declining leverage and lower market interest rates over the past 12 months.
 

Other income (almost exclusively interest income) increased to approximately $0.7 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2003 compared to approximately
$0.5 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2002 or 40%. Other income increased to approximately $1.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2003 compared
to approximately $1.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2002 or 27%. These increases were primarily due to higher cash balances for the same periods in
2003 than in 2002.
 

Income before provision for income taxes and cumulative effect of an accounting change increased to approximately $25.3 million for the quarter ended
June 30, 2003 compared to income before provision for income taxes and cumulative effect of an accounting change of approximately $21.3 million for the
quarter ended June 30, 2002 or 19%. This increase was due primarily to lower interest expense as described above. Income before provision for income taxes and
cumulative effect of an accounting change increased to approximately $36.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2003 compared to income before provision
for income taxes and cumulative effect of an accounting change of approximately $23.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2002 or 56%. This increase
was due primarily to higher operating income due to higher revenue and lower interest expense as described above.
 

Income before cumulative effect of accounting change increased to approximately $15.7 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2003 compared to income
before cumulative effect of an accounting change of approximately $13.2 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2002 or 19%. Income before cumulative effect of
accounting change increased to approximately $22.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2003 compared to income before cumulative effect of an
accounting change of approximately $14.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2002 or 56%. These increases were due to higher income before provision
for income taxes and cumulative effect of an accounting change compared to the previous year’s income, partially offset by a higher provision for income taxes in
the same periods of 2003 than in 2002.
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Cumulative effect of accounting change was approximately $29.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2002. This charge, net of income tax benefit of
approximately $15.0 million, related to an impairment charge associated with the adoption of SFAS No. 142. Based on an analysis completed in accordance with
SFAS No. 142, we calculated impairment on the carrying value of certain of our FCC broadcast licenses and goodwill amounts. See “Recent Accounting
Pronouncements” below.
 

Net income increased to approximately $15.7 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2003 from approximately $13.2 million for the quarter ended June 30,
2002 or 19%. Net income increased to approximately $22.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2003 compared to a net loss of approximately $15.3 million
for the six months ended June 30, 2002. These increases were due to higher income before provision for income taxes and cumulative effect of an accounting
change, as well as the effect of the accounting change in the first quarter of 2002, which reduced net income in that period by approximately $29.8 million.
 
Other Data
 EBITDA was relatively unchanged at approximately $40.2 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2003 compared to approximately $40.3 million for the
quarter ended June 30, 2002. EBITDA increased to approximately $66.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2003 from approximately $63.5 million for the
six months ended June 30, 2002 or 4%. This change was attributable primarily to the increase in net broadcast revenue partially offset by higher operating
expenses and higher corporate expenses associated with Radio One’s overall growth, as described above.
 (a)  “EBITDA” consists of net income plus (1) depreciation, amortization, non-cash compensation, interest expense, income tax provision and cumulative effect

of accounting change and less (2) other income.
 (b)  As of June 30, 2003, we had 104,606,000 shares of common stock outstanding on a weighted average basis and 105,141,000 shares of common stock

outstanding for fully diluted purposes.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
 Our primary source of liquidity is cash provided by operations and, to the extent necessary, commitments available under our bank credit facility and other
debt or equity financing. We have a bank credit facility under which we have $324.0 million outstanding in term loans and may borrow up to $250.0 million on a
revolving basis, and from which we have historically drawn down funds as capital was required, primarily for acquisitions. As of June 30, 2003, we were able to
borrow up to $250.0 million, taking into account the covenant restrictions in effect on that date. In 2003, minimum principal payments in the aggregate amount of
$52.5 million are due in equal quarterly installments of approximately $13.1 million. As of June 30, 2003, we have made $26.3 million in principal payments.
 

The credit facility requires that we comply with certain financial covenants limiting our ability to incur additional debt. Such terms also place restrictions
on us with respect to the sale of assets, liens, investments, dividends, debt repayments, capital expenditures, transactions with affiliates, consolidation and
mergers, and the issuance of equity interests, among other things. The credit facility also requires compliance with financial tests based on financial position and
results of operations, including a leverage ratio, an interest coverage ratio and a fixed charge coverage ratio, all of which could effectively limit our ability to
borrow under the credit facility or to otherwise raise funds in the debt markets.
 

Both the revolving commitment and term loan borrowings under our credit facility bear interest, at our option, at a rate equal to either LIBOR plus a spread
that ranges from .625% to 2.000% or on the prime rate plus a spread of up to 1%, depending on our leverage ratio. Under the bank credit facility, we may be
required from time to time to protect ourselves from interest rate fluctuations using interest rate hedge agreements. As a result, we have entered into various fixed
rate swap agreements designed to mitigate our exposure to higher floating interest rates. These swap agreements require that we pay a fixed rate of interest on the
notional amount to a bank and that bank pay to us a variable rate equal to three-month LIBOR. We currently have swap agreements in place for a total notional
amount of $225.0 million. As of June 30, 2003 the periods remaining on the swap agreements range in duration from 12 to 38 months.
 

Our credit exposure under these swap agreements is limited to the cost of replacing an agreement in the event of non-performance by our counter-party;
however, we do not anticipate non-performance. All of the swap agreements are tied to the three-month LIBOR interest rate, which may fluctuate significantly on
a daily basis. The valuation of each of these swap agreements is affected by the change in the three-month LIBOR rates and the remaining term of the agreement.
Any increase in the three-month LIBOR rate results in a more favorable valuation, while a decrease in the three-month LIBOR rate results in a less favorable
valuation. The following table summarizes the interest rates in effect with respect to certain of our debt as of June 30, 2003.
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Type of debt
  

Amount
outstanding

  

Applicable
interest rate

Senior bank term debt
(subject to a 46 month fixed swap) (1)(2)   

$ 100.0 million
  

4.39 %

Senior bank term debt
(subject to a 36 month fixed swap) (1)(2)   

$ 50.0 million
  

4.01 %

Senior bank term debt
(subject to a 24 month fixed swap) (1)(2)   

$ 50.0 million
  

3.55%

Senior bank term debt
(subject to a 20 month fixed swap) (2)   

$ 25.0 million
  

4.51 %

Senior bank term debt
(subject to variable interest rate) (3)   

$ 98.8 million
  

approximately 2.14%

8 7/8% senior subordinated notes
(fixed rate)   

$ 300.0 million
  

8.88 %

 
(1)  A total of $200 million is subject to fixed rate swap agreements that became effective on December 2, 2002.
(2)  Under our fixed rate swap agreements, we pay a fixed rate plus a spread based on our leverage ratio, as defined in our credit agreement. That spread is

currently set at 1.00% and is incorporated into the applicable interest rates outlined above.
(3)  Subject to rolling 90-day LIBOR plus a spread currently at 1.00% and incorporated into the applicable interest rate outlined above.
 

We have used, and may continue to use, a significant portion of our capital resources to consummate acquisitions. These acquisitions have been and may
continue to be funded from (i) our credit facility (ii) the proceeds of the historical offerings of our common stock, (iii) the proceeds of future equity or debt
offerings, and (iv) internally generated cash flow.
 

The following table provides a comparison of our statements of cash flows for the six months ended June 30, 2002 and 2003.
 

   

Six Months Ended
June 30,

 

   

2002
      

2003
 

Net cash flows from operating activities   18,915,000      45,788,000 
Net cash used in investing activities   (58,547,000)      (10,674,000)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities   58,368,000      (36,455,000)

 
Net cash flows from operating activities were approximately $45.8 million and $18.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002,

respectively. The increase for the six months ended June 30, 2003 was primarily due to (i) an increase in net broadcast revenue, net of an increase in operating
expenses, (ii) a decrease in outstanding trade receivables due to improved collection efforts, (iii) reduced leverage, and (iv) to a lesser extent, changes in other
working capital components.
 

Net cash flows used in investing activities were approximately $10.7 million and $58.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. During the six months ended June 30, 2003, we completed the acquisition of WBLO-FM in the Louisville market for approximately $2.0 million
and paid approximately $1.3 million to lease tower space in our Dallas market for the next 60 years. During the six months ended June 30, 2002, we completed
the acquisition of the assets of WHTA-FM (formerly WPZE-FM) in the Atlanta, Georgia market for approximately $56.0 million. Capital expenditures were
approximately $6.1 million and $5.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
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Net cash flows used in financing activities were approximately $36.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2003 and net cash flows from financing
activities were approximately $58.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2002. During the six months ended June 30, 2003, we repaid $26.3 million of
principal under our bank credit facility. During the six months ended June 30, 2002, certain selling shareholders and we completed an offering of 11,500,000
shares of class D common stock at an offering price of $20.25 per share. Through this offering, we received proceeds of approximately $198.8 million after
deducting offering costs. Approximately $130.0 million of the proceeds were used to partially repay amounts outstanding under our bank credit facility.
 

As a result of the aforementioned, cash and cash equivalents decreased by $1.3 million during the six months ended June 30, 2003 compared to an increase
of approximately $18.7 million during the six months ended June 30, 2002. Our balance of cash and cash equivalents was approximately $86.1 million as of
December 31, 2002. Our balance of cash and cash equivalents was approximately $84.8 million as of June 30, 2003.
 

In addition to debt service and quarterly dividend payments of approximately $5.0 million on our 6.5% Convertible Preferred Securities, our principal
liquidity requirements are working capital and general corporate purposes, including capital expenditures, and, if appropriate opportunities arise, acquisitions of
additional radio stations and/or investments in other media related opportunities. We estimate that for all of 2003, capital expenditures will total approximately
$10.5 to $11.5 million.
 

In July 2003, we purchased the outstanding stock of Hawes-Saunders Broadcast Properties, Inc., owner and operator of WRNB-FM (formerly WROU-FM)
licensed to West Carrollton, Ohio for approximately $9.5 million in cash. In July 2003, we entered into a joint venture agreement to launch TV One, LLC, a cable
television network in which we expect to invest approximately $74.0 million over four years. In August 2003, we made our first capital contribution of
approximately $18.5 million to TV One, LLC.
 

During the quarter ended June 30, 2003, we obtained a standby letter of credit in the amount of $275,000 in connection with our annual insurance policy
renewal. To date, there has been no activity on this standby letter of credit.
 

We believe that our current cash and cash investment balances, as well as anticipated cash flows generated from operations, will be sufficient to meet our
working capital, capital expenditure and debt service requirements through at least the next 12 months.
 
RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
 In June 2001, FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 142 (SFAS No. 142), “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” This
pronouncement requires a non-amortization approach to account for purchased goodwill and certain other intangible assets. Under a non-amortization approach,
goodwill and certain intangibles will not be amortized into results of operations but, instead, would be reviewed for impairment and written down and charged to
results of operations only in the periods in which the recorded value of goodwill and certain intangibles is more than their fair value. Upon adopting the
transitional rules of SFAS No. 142, we recorded an impairment charge of approximately $23.2 million, net of an income tax benefit of $14.5 million in the first
quarter of 2002, as the carrying value of certain of our FCC licenses exceeded the appraised fair value. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, we reflected this charge
as a cumulative effect of an accounting change, effective January 1, 2002, in our statement of operations.
 

We adopted the final provision of SFAS No. 142 in the fourth quarter of 2002 by reviewing the fair value of our reporting units and comparing that fair
value to the net book value of the reporting unit. To the extent a reporting unit’s carrying amount exceeded its fair value, an indication would exist that the
reporting unit’s goodwill was impaired, and we would then be required to perform the second step of the transitional impairment test. In the second step, we
compared the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill, determined by allocating the reporting unit’s fair value to all of its assets and liabilities in a
manner similar to a
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purchase price allocation in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Board Standard No. 141 (SFAS No. 141), “Business Combinations”, to its
carrying amount, both of which would be measured as of the date of adoption. Based on this analysis, we determined that we had an impairment of goodwill (as
defined in SFAS No. 142) in our Augusta, Georgia market. We calculated the amount of the impairment and recorded an impairment charge of approximately
$6.6 million, net of an income tax benefit of $496,000 during the fourth quarter of 2002. As the provisions of SFAS No. 142 related to the impairment of goodwill
and other indefinite life intangible assets are effective as of January 1, 2002, the financial information for the six months ended June 30, 2002, which preceded the
period in which the transitional goodwill impairment loss was measured, has been restated to reflect the accounting change in that period.
 

In January 2003, FASB issued Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 46 (FIN 46), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an
Interpretation of ARB No. 51.” This interpretation of ARB No. 51, “Consolidated Financial Statements, “ requires certain variable interest entities to be
consolidated by the primary beneficiary of the entity if the equity investors in the entity do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest or do not
have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support from other parties. FIN 46 is effective
immediately for all new variable interest entities created or acquired after January 31, 2003. For variable interest entities created or acquired prior to February 1,
2003, the provisions of FIN 46 must be applied for the first interim or annual period beginning after June 15, 2003. The adoption of FIN 46 did not have a
material impact on our results of operations or financial position.
 
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
 This document contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. These forward-looking statements are not historical facts, but rather reflect our current expectations concerning future results and events.
You can identify these forward-looking statements by our use of words such as “anticipates,” “expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “seeks,” “likely,” “may,”
“estimates” and similar expressions. We cannot guarantee that we will achieve these plans, intentions or expectations. Because these statements apply to future
events, they are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those forecast or anticipated in the forward-looking
statement. These risks, uncertainties and factors include, but are not limited to:
 
 •  economic conditions, both generally and relative to the radio broadcasting industry;
 
 •  risks associated with our acquisition strategy;
 
 •  the highly competitive nature of the broadcast industry;
 
 •  our high degree of leverage; and
 
 •  other factors described in our reports on Form 10-K and Form 10-Q.
 

You should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which reflect our view as of the date of this report. We undertake no obligation
to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements because of new information, future events or otherwise.
 
Item 4. Controls and Procedures
 Prior to the date of this report, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and
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operation of our disclosure controls and procedures. Based on this evaluation, our CEO and CFO concluded that, as of June 30, 2003, our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective in timely alerting them to material information required to be included in our periodic SEC reports. Disclosure controls and procedures
are controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, including, without limitation, controls and
procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is accumulated and
communicated to our management, including our CEO and CFO, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
 

In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, our management recognized that any controls and procedures, no matter how well
designed and operated, can only provide reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives and management necessarily was required to apply its
judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures.
 

We maintain a system of internal controls that are designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of our financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. There have been no significant changes in
our internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our CEO’s and CFO’s last evaluation.
 

33



Table of Contents

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
 
Item 1. Legal Proceedings
 In November 2001, Radio One and certain of its officers and directors were named as defendants in a class action shareholder complaint filed in the United
States District Court for the Southern District of New York. Similar complaints were filed in the same court against hundreds of other public companies that
conducted initial public offerings of their common stock in the late 1990s (the “Issuers”). Those cases are now consolidated under the caption In re Initial Public
Offering Securities Litigation, Case No. 91 MC 92. In the amended complaint against Radio One, the plaintiffs allege that Radio One, certain of its officers and
directors, and the underwriters of certain of its public offerings violated Section 11 of the Securities Act of 1933 by failing to disclose in its registration statements
material facts regarding the compensation to be received by, and the stock allocation practices of, the underwriters. The complaint also contains a claim for
violation of section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 based on allegations that this omission constituted a deceit on investors. The plaintiffs seek
unspecified monetary damages and other relief.
 

In October 2002, the parties agreed to toll the statute of limitations with respect to Radio One’s officers and directors until September 30, 2003, and on the
basis of this agreement, the officers and directors were dismissed from the lawsuit without prejudice. In February 2003, the Court issued a decision denying the
motion to dismiss the Section 11 claims against Radio One and almost all of the issuers, and denying the motion to dismiss the Section 10(b) claims against Radio
One and many of the issuers.
 

In July 2003, a Special Litigation Committee of Radio One’s Board of Directors agreed to participate in a settlement with the plaintiffs that is anticipated to
include most of the approximately 300 issuer defendants in similar actions. Once finalized, the settlement agreement will be subject to court approval and
sufficient participation by issuer defendants in similar actions. The proposed settlement includes, without limitation, a guarantee of payments to the plaintiffs in
the lawsuits, assignment of certain claims against the underwriters to the plaintiffs, and a dismissal of all claims against Radio One and related individuals. Other
than legal fees incurred to date, Radio One expects that all expenses of settlement, if any, will be paid by its insurance carriers. Until such settlement is finalized,
we and our officers and directors intend to continue to defend the actions vigorously.
 

We are involved from time to time in various routine legal and administrative proceedings and threatened legal and administrative proceedings incidental to
the ordinary course of our business. We believe the resolution of such matters will not have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results
of operations.
 
Item 2. Changes in Securities and Use of Proceeds
 None
 
Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities
 None.
 
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
 On June 5, 2003, the Company held its Annual Meeting of its holders of common stock pursuant to a Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders and Proxy
Statement dated April 25, 2003, a copy of which has been previously filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Stockholders were asked to vote upon
the following proposals:
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1)  The election of Terry L. Jones and Brian W. McNeill as class A directors to serve until the 2004 annual meeting of stockholders or until their

successors are duly elected and qualified.
 
 

2)  The election of Catherine L. Hughes, Alfred C. Liggins, III, D. Geoffrey Armstrong, L. Ross Love and Ronald E. Blaylock as directors to serve until
the 2004 annual meeting of stockholders or until their successors are duly elected and qualified.

 
 3)  The ratification of the appointment of Ernst & Young, LLP as independent auditors for the Company for the year ending December 31, 2003.
 

        

Number of Votes

        

Class A
  

Class B

Proposal 1            
    Jones     For   11,693,472   
     Withhold Authority   3,385,905   
    McNeill     For   14,682,727   
     Withhold Authority   396,250   
Proposal 2            
    Hughes     For   11,968,439  28,618,430
     Withhold Authority   3,110,938   
    Liggins     For   12,193,308  28,618,430
     Withhold Authority   2,886,069   
    Armstrong     For   14,564,527  28,618,430
     Withhold Authority   514,850   
    Love     For   11,918,411  28,618,430
     Withhold Authority   3,160,936   
    Blaylock     For   14,564,527  28,618,430
     Withhold Authority   514,850   
Proposal 3            
     For   14,901,359  28,618,430
     Against   176,213   
     Abstain   1,805   
 
Item 5. Other Information
 None.
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Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K
 (a)        EXHIBITS
 

3.1

  

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Radio One, Inc. (dated as of May 4, 2000), as filed with the State of Delaware
on May 9, 2000 (incorporated by reference to Radio One’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2000 (File
No. 0-25969)).

3.1.1

  

Certificate of Amendment (dated as of September 21, 2000) of the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Radio One,
Inc. (dated as of May 4, 2000), as filed with the State of Delaware on September 21, 2000 (incorporated by reference to Radio One’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 6, 2000 (File No. 0- 25969)).

3.2
  

Amended and Restated By-laws of Radio One, Inc., amended as of June 5, 2001 (incorporated by reference to Radio One’s Form 10-
Q filed August 14, 2001 (File No. 0-25969)).

3.3

  

Certificate Of Designations, Rights and Preferences of the 6½% Convertible Preferred Securities Remarketable Term Income
Deferrable Equity Securities (HIGH TIDES) of Radio One, Inc., as filed with the State of Delaware on July 13, 2000 (incorporated by
reference to Radio One’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2000 (File No. 0-25969)).

10.1
  

Second Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated July 15, 2003, by and among Radio One, Inc., Bank
of America, N.A. and the other lenders party thereto.

31.1  Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14 or Rule 15d-14 of the Exchange Act.
31.2  Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14 or Rule 15d-14 of the Exchange Act.
32.1

  

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

32.2
  

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

 
(b)        REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
 The Company filed an Item 12 Form 8-K dated April 4, 2003, for the purpose of disclosing updated earnings guidance for the first quarter of 2003.
 

The Company filed an Item 12 Form 8-K dated May 8, 2003, for the purpose of releasing financial results for the first quarter of 2003.
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SIGNATURE
 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.
  

  
RADIO ONE, INC.

    
   /s/     Scott R. Royster                             
August 13, 2003   Scott R. Royster    
   Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer    
   (Principal Financial Officer)    
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Exhibit 10.1
 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT
AGREEMENT

 
This SECOND AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT (this “Amendment”) is entered into as of July 15,

2003, by and among RADIO ONE, INC., a Delaware corporation (the “Borrower”), BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., a national banking association, individually as
a Lender and as Administrative Agent, and the other Lenders party hereto.
 

RECITALS
 
A.    On June 30, 1998, the Borrower entered into that certain Credit Agreement with a syndicate of Lenders (the “1998 Credit Agreement”) providing for certain
extensions of credit to the Borrower, on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth therein. The 1998 Credit Agreement was subsequently (i) amended by
that certain First Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of December 23, 1998, (ii) amended by that certain Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as
of February 9, 1999 and (iii) amended and restated in its entirety by that certain Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of February 26, 1999 (the
“1999 Credit Agreement”). The 1999 Credit Agreement was subsequently (i) amended and restated in its entirety by that certain Second Amended and Restated
Credit Agreement dated as of July 17, 2000 and (ii) amended by that certain First Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of
March 18, 2002 (the 1998 Credit Agreement, as so amended and amended and restated, the “Credit Agreement”). Terms used herein, unless otherwise defined
herein, shall have the meanings set forth in the Credit Agreement.
 
B.    The Borrower and the Lenders have agreed, subject to the terms and conditions specified herein, to modify certain provisions of the Credit Agreement.
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, the Borrower, the Lenders and the Administrative Agent hereby agree as follows:
 

Section 1.    AMENDMENTS
 

Subject to the covenants, terms and conditions set forth in this Amendment, and in reliance upon the representations and warranties of the Borrower made
herein, the undersigned Lenders (which Lenders constitute the Majority Lenders required under Section 11.1 of the Credit Agreement to effect the following
amendments) amend the Credit Agreement as follows:
 

(a)    Section 1.1 of the Credit Agreement is amended by adding a definition of “TV One” in alphabetical order as provided below:
 “TV One” means the joint venture among the Borrower (or its designated Subsidiary), Comcast Corporation (or its designated nominees) and certain

other investors to develop and distribute television programming which is to target the African-American community, to be entered into on substantially
similar terms to those set forth in (x) that certain Memorandum of Terms, dated May 23, 2003, executed by the Borrower, Comcast Corporation and the
investors and (y) that
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certain draft, dated June 6, 2003, of a Limited Liability Company Operating Agreement relating to such joint venture.
 

(b)    Section 4.2 of the Credit Agreement is amended by adding the following new subsection (k) thereto to read as follows:
 

(k)    Upon (A) the sale by an Unrestricted Subsidiary of its Equity Interests in TV One or (B) the conveyance, sale, lease, assignment, exchange,
transfer or other disposition of all or substantially all of the business or assets of TV One to a Person other than (x) the Borrower, (y) a Restricted
Subsidiary or (z) an Unrestricted Subsidiary provided the Administrative Agent has been granted a perfected first priority security interest in the Equity
Interests in such Unrestricted Subsidiary, whether by a single transaction or a series of related transactions (the “TV One Disposition”), to the extent the
Borrower or a Subsidiary of the Borrower receives cash proceeds from such TV One Disposition the Borrower shall repay the Loans in an amount equal to
the aggregate amount of Investments actually made in TV One, provided, however, if the Borrower (i) enters into a binding contract for the reinvestment of
the proceeds received from the TV One Disposition in an Investment permitted under Section 8.8(b)(x) or to make a Permitted Acquisition within 270 days
after such TV One Disposition and (ii) actually reinvests such proceeds in an Investment permitted under Section 8.8(b)(x) or makes a Permitted
Acquisition within 360 days after the date of such TV One Disposition, no such repayment of the Loans shall be required.

 
(c)    A new Section 5.29 is hereby added to the Credit Agreement in numerical order to read as follows:

 5.29    Tax Shelter Regulations.  The Borrower does not intend to treat the Loans and/or Letters of Credit and related transactions as being a
“reportable transaction” (within the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.6011-4). In the event the Borrower determines to take any action
inconsistent with such intention, it will promptly notify the Administrative Agent thereof. If the Borrower so notifies the Administrative Agent, the
Borrower acknowledges that one or more of the Lenders may treat its Loans and/or its interest in Letters of Credit as part of a transaction that is subject to
Treasury Regulation Section 301.6112-1, and such Lender or Lenders, as applicable, will maintain the lists and other records required by such Treasury
Regulation.

 
(d)     Section 7.2(g) of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by (i) deleting “and” at the end of clause (e) thereof; (ii) deleting “.” at the end of clause

(f) thereof and inserting “; and” in lieu thereof; and (iii) adding the following new clause (g) thereto to read as follows:
 

(g)    promptly after the Borrower has notified the Administrative Agent of any intention by the Borrower to treat the Loans and/or Letters of Credit
and related transactions as being a “reportable transaction” (within the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.6011-4), a duly completed copy of IRS
Form 8886 or any successor form.
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(e)    Sections 7.9(a), 7.9(b)(iv), 7.9(c) and 7.9(d) of the Credit Agreement are amended by adding the following proviso to end of each such section:
 

(a)    provided, however, unless the Administrative Agent specifically requires fixture filings with respect to any particular fixtures, fixture filings
will not be required to be filed with respect to the Collateral.

 
(f)    Section 8.7(vii) of the Credit Agreement is amended by adding the following proviso to the end of such section:

 
(b)    provided, however, unless the Administrative Agent specifically requires fixture filings with respect to any particular fixtures, fixture filings

will not be required to be filed with respect to the personal property acquired by the Borrower or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries in such Acquisition;
 

(g)    Section 8.8(b) of the Credit Agreement is amended and restated in its entirety as follows:
 

(b)    provided no Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing both before and immediately after the making of such
Investment, Investments in an amount not to exceed (x) $50,000,000 in the aggregate over the term of this Agreement for all Investments except direct or
indirect Investments in TV One, plus (y) $75,000,000 in the aggregate over the term of this Agreement for all Investments made in any entity holding
Equity Interests in TV One, in each case only so long as, with respect to each such Investment: (i) the Borrower shall have given notice to the
Administrative Agent of each such investment in excess of $5,000,000 at least three Business Days prior to making such investment, (ii) each such
investment shall be structured so that it is non-recourse to the Loan Parties and that no Loan Party shall have any liability or obligation, contingent or
otherwise, in respect of such investment, (iii) the business conducted by each entity in which the Borrower or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries may invest
pursuant to this subsection shall be related or incidental to (A) the Borrower’s and its Restricted Subsidiaries’ business of owning and operating radio
stations and the board of directors, executive committee of such board or chief executive officer of the Borrower shall have determined in good faith that
each such investment shall benefit the Borrower’s and its Restricted Subsidiaries’ business of owning and operating radio stations or (B) TV One, (iv) each
such investment (other than (A) Equity Interests in TV One and (B) a minority Equity Interest in a Person that is not a Subsidiary if the Borrower or
Restricted Subsidiary acquiring such minority Equity Interest is contractually prohibited from creating a Lien in such minority Equity Interest) shall be
pledged to the Administrative Agent for the benefit of the Lenders pursuant to the applicable Pledge Agreement or other documentation in form and
substance satisfactory to the Administrative Agent as security for the Obligations or such investment shall be held by a wholly owned Restricted Subsidiary
of the Borrower that has no operations and no material liabilities, and all of the equity interests of such Restricted Subsidiary shall be
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pledged to the Administrative Agent for the benefit of the Lenders pursuant to the applicable Pledge Agreement or other documentation in form and
substance satisfactory to the Administrative Agent as security for the Obligations and (v) the proceeds of any sale of Equity Interests in TV One are applied
as required by Section 4.2(k); and

 
(h)    Section 11.16 of the Credit Agreement is amended and restated in its entirety as follows:

 
11.16    Confidentiality.  Each Lender agrees to keep confidential all non-public information provided to it by or on behalf of the Borrower or any of

the Subsidiaries pursuant to this Agreement or any other Loan Document; provided that nothing herein shall prevent any Lender from disclosing any such
information (i) to the Administrative Agent or any other Lender, (ii) to any Assignee or Participant or prospective transferee, if such transferee has agreed
in writing to be bound by this Section 11.16, (iii) to its employees, directors, agents, attorneys, accountants and other professional advisors, (iv) as may be
required or appropriate in any report, statement or testimony submitted to the NAIC or any Governmental Authority having or claiming jurisdiction over
such Lender (including the Board and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or any similar organization, whether in the United States or elsewhere,
and their respective successors), (v) as may be required or appropriate in response to any summons or subpoena or in connection with any litigation, (vi) in
response to any order of any court or other Governmental Authority or as may otherwise be required pursuant to any Requirement of Law, (vii) which has
been publicly disclosed other than in breach of this Agreement, or (viii) in connection with the exercise of any remedy hereunder.

 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the Administrative Agent and each Lender may disclose without limitation of any kind, any information with
respect to the “tax treatment” and “tax structure” (in each case, within the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.6011-4) of the transactions
contemplated hereby and all materials of any kind (including opinions or other tax analyses) that are provided to the Administrative Agent or such Lender
relating to such tax treatment and tax structure; provided that with respect to any document or similar item that in either case contains information
concerning the tax treatment or tax structure of the transaction as well as other information, this sentence shall only apply to such portions of the document
or similar item that relate to the tax treatment or tax structure of the Loans, Letters of Credit and transactions contemplated hereby.

 
Section 2.    REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES.

 
To induce the Administrative Agent and the Lenders to enter into this Amendment, Borrower represents and warrants to the Administrative Agent and the

Lenders as follows:
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(a)     No Defaults.    No Default or Event of Default exists under the Credit Agreement, the Notes, any of the Security Documents or any of the other
documents executed in connection therewith, and no such Default or Event of Default is imminent.
 

(b)    Binding Effect.    This Amendment, the Credit Agreement, as amended hereby, the Notes, the Security Documents and the other documents executed
in connection therewith constitute the legal, valid and binding obligations of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries parties thereto, enforceable against the Borrower
and such parties in accordance with their respective terms, except as enforceability may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, or similar laws affecting
the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally or by equitable principles of general applicability.
 

(c)    Representations and Warranties.    The representations and warranties set forth in Section 5 of the Credit Agreement are true and correct in all
material respects on and as of the date hereof, both before and after giving effect to the effectiveness of this Amendment, as if such representations and warranties
were being made on and as of the date hereof.
 

Section 3.    CONDITIONS PRECEDENT
 

The parties hereto agree that the waivers and amendments set forth herein shall not be effective until the satisfaction in full of each of the following
conditions precedent, each in a manner satisfactory to the Administrative Agent and the Lenders parties hereto in their sole discretion:
 

(a)    Execution and Delivery of this Amendment.    The Administrative Agent shall have received a copy of this Amendment executed and delivered by
the Borrower and by Lenders constituting the Majority Lenders.
 

(b)    Pledge of Equity Interests of New Unrestricted Subsidiary.    The Borrower and/or any Restricted Subsidiary owning the Equity Interests of the
newly created Unrestricted Subsidiary holding or that will hold the Equity Interests of TV One shall have delivered to the Administrative Agent (i) such
amendments to the Pledge Agreement of the applicable Loan Party as the Administrative Agent deems necessary or advisable in order to grant the Administrative
Agent, for the benefit of the Lenders, a perfected first priority security interest in the Equity Interests of such new Unrestricted Subsidiary and (ii) certificates
representing the Equity Interests of such new Unrestricted Subsidiary, together with undated stock powers in blank, executed and delivered by a duly authorized
officer of the applicable Loan Party.
 

(c)    Representations and Warranties.    Each of the representations and warranties made herein shall be true and correct on and as of the date hereof, as
if made on and as of such date, both before and after giving effect to the waivers set forth herein.
 

(d)    Other Documents, Certificates and Instruments.    The Administrative Agent shall have received, in form and substance satisfactory to the
Administrative Agent and its counsel, such other documents, certificates and instruments as the Administrative Agent shall require.
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Section 4.    MISCELLANEOUS
 

(a)    Ratification and Confirmation.    The terms, provisions, conditions and covenants of the Credit Agreement, the Notes, the Security Documents and
the other documents executed in connection therewith remain in full force and effect and are hereby ratified and confirmed, and the execution, delivery and
performance of this Amendment shall not in any manner operate as a waiver of, consent to or amendment of any other term, provision, condition or covenant
thereof.
 

(b)    Fees and Expenses.    The Borrower agrees to pay on demand all costs and expenses of the Administrative Agent in connection with the preparation,
reproduction, execution, and delivery of this Amendment and the other documents prepared in connection herewith, including, without limitation, the reasonable
fees and out-of-pocket expenses of counsel for the Administrative Agent, which fees and out-of-pocket expenses of counsel shall not exceed $10,000 in the
aggregate.
 

(c)    Headings.    Section and subsection headings in this Amendment are included herein for convenience of reference only and shall not constitute a part
of this Amendment for any other purpose or be given any substantive effect.
 

(d)    APPLICABLE LAW.    THIS AMENDMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND SHALL BE CONSTRUED AND INTERPRETED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK, WITHOUT REGARD TO CONFLICTS OF LAW PRINCIPLES.
 

(e)    Liens.    The Borrower agrees hereby that all Liens, security interests, assignments, superior titles, rights, remedies, powers, equities and priorities
securing the Notes including but not limited to those under the Security Documents are hereby ratified and confirmed as valid, subsisting and continuing to secure
the Notes, and this Amendment shall not affect the priority of such Liens.
 

(f)    Counterparts.    This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts and by different parties hereto in separate counterparts, each of
which when so executed and delivered shall be deemed an original, but all such counterparts together shall constitute but one and the same instrument; signature
pages may be detached from multiple separate counterparts and attached to a single counterpart so that all signature pages are physically attached to the same
document.
 

(g)    FINAL AGREEMENT.    THIS AMENDMENT, TOGETHER WITH THE CREDIT AGREEMENT, THE NOTES, THE SECURITY
DOCUMENTS AND THE OTHER DOCUMENTS EXECUTED IN CONNECTION THEREWITH, REPRESENTS THE FINAL AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE PARTIES AND MAY NOT BE CONTRADICTED BY EVIDENCE OF PRIOR, CONTEMPORANEOUS, OR SUBSEQUENT ORAL
AGREEMENTS OF THE PARTIES. THERE ARE NO UNWRITTEN ORAL AGREEMENTS BETWEEN THE PARTIES.
 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank; Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be executed by their respective officers thereunto duly authorized as of
the date first above written.
 

RADIO ONE, INC.

By:   

  
Name:   

  
Title:   

  
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO SECOND AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT



BANK OF AMERICA, N.A.,
as the Administrative Agent and as a Lender

By:   

  
Name: Todd Shipley
Title:  Managing Director

 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO SECOND AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT



CREDIT SUISSE FIRST BOSTON

By:   

  
Name:   

  
Title:   

  
 

By:   

  
Name:  

  
Title:   

  
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO SECOND AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT



WACHOVIA BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

By:   

  
Name:   

  
Title:   

  
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO SECOND AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT



TORONTO DOMINION (TEXAS), INC.

By:   

  
Name:   

  
Title:   

  
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO SECOND AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT



DEUTSCHE BANK TRUST CO. AMERICAS

By:   

  
Name:   

  
Title:   

  
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO SECOND AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT



ROYAL BANK OF CANADA

By:   

  
Name:   

  
Title:   

  
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO SECOND AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT



THE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA

By:   

  
Name:   

  
Title:   

  
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO SECOND AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT



ING (U.S.) CAPITAL LLC

By:   

  
Name:   

  
Title:   

  
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO SECOND AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT



COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE
RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK B.A.,
“RABOBANK NEDERLAND”,
NEW YORK BRANCH

By:   

  
Name:   

  
Title:   

  
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO SECOND AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT



FLEET NATIONAL BANK

By:   

  
Name:   

  
Title:   

  
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO SECOND AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT



SUNTRUST BANK

By:   

  
Name:   

  
Title:   

  
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO SECOND AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT



THE BANK OF NEW YORK

By:   

  
Name:   

  
Title:   

  
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO SECOND AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT



BIG SKY SENIOR LOAN FUND LTD.

By:   

  
Name:   

  
Title:   

  
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO SECOND AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT



NATEXIS BANQUE

By:   

  
Name:   

  
Title:   

  
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO SECOND AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT



WEBSTER BANK

By:   

  
Name:   

  
Title:   

  
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO SECOND AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT



BANK OF SCOTLAND

By:   

  
Name:   

  
Title:   

  
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO SECOND AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT



GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL CORPORATION

By:   

  
Name:   

  
Title:   

  
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO SECOND AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT



FRANKLIN CLO I LIMITED

By:   

  
Name:   

  
Title:   

  
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO SECOND AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT



FRANKLIN CLO II LIMITED

By:   

  
Name:   

  
Title:   

  
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO SECOND AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT



FRANKLIN CLO III LIMITED

By:   

  
Name:   

  
Title:   

  
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO SECOND AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT



FRANKLIN FLOATING RATE DAILY ACCESS

By:   

  
Name:   

  
Title:   

  
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO SECOND AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT



FRANKLIN FLOATING RATE MASTER

By:   

  
Name:   

  
Title:   

  
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO SECOND AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT



FRANKLIN FLOATING RATE TRUST

By:    

   
Name:    

   
Title:    

   
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO SECOND AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT



EATON VANCE INSTITUTIONAL SENIOR LOAN FUND

By:
  

Eaton Vance Management,
as Investment Advisor

By:    

   
Name:   

   
Title:    

   
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO SECOND AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT



EATON VANCE VT FLOATING RATE FUND

By:
  

Eaton Vance Management,
as Investment Advisor

By:    

   
Name:   

   
Title:    

   
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO SECOND AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT



GRAYSON & CO

By:
  

Boston Management and Research,
as Investment Advisor

By:    

   
Name:   

   
Title:    

   
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO SECOND AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT



CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
 
I, Alfred C. Liggins, III, certify that:
 
I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Radio One, Inc.;
 

1.    Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
 

2.    Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
 

3.    The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:
 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 
(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the

effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 
4.    The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the

registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control

over financial reporting.
 
Date: August 13, 2003
 

/s/  Alfred C. Liggins, III         

Alfred C. Liggins, III
Chief Executive Officer and President



CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
 
I, Scott R. Royster, certify that:
 
I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Radio One, Inc.;
 

1.    Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
 

2.    Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
 

3.    The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:
 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 
(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the

effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 
4.    The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the

registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control

over financial reporting.
 
Date: August 13, 2003
 

/s/     Scott R. Royster       

Scott R. Royster
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
 



CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
 

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as created by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the undersigned officer of Radio One, Inc. (the “Company”)
hereby certifies, to such officer’s knowledge, that:
 

(i)    the accompanying Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of the Company for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2003 (the “Report”) fully complies with
the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and
 

(ii)    the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
Date: August 13, 2003
 

/s/ Alfred C. Liggins, III

Alfred C. Liggins, III
Chief Executive Officer and President
 
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Radio One, Inc and will be retained by Radio One, Inc. and furnished to
the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



 
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

 
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as created by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the undersigned officer of Radio One, Inc. (the “Company”)

hereby certifies, to such officer’s knowledge, that:
 

(i)    the accompanying Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of the Company for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2003 (the “Report”) fully complies with
the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and
 

(ii)    the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
Date: August 13, 2003
 

/s/ Scott R. Royster

Scott R. Royster
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
 
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Radio One, Inc and will be retained by Radio One, Inc. and furnished to
the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.


